
 
TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 7, 2023 – 6:30 pm 

TOWN HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

DRAFT AGENDA 

 

Please note there will be an opportunity during the meeting for citizens to address the Town 

Council when the Mayor declares public comments open. We request that anyone addressing 

the Council sign up, approach the podium when called, state your first and last name, and 

provide your complete mailing address. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion 

B. ROLL CALL – Kim Kingsley, Clerk 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Webb 

D. PRAYER –  

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Mayor Pillion 

F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

• July 10, 2023 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to three (3) minutes per person.  

• Town of Abingdon residents 

• Other public comments (e.g. property owners, organizations) 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  

1.  Proclamation recognizing August 7th as Purple Heart Day 

I. PUBLIC HEARING -   Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided; comments are 

limited to five (5) minutes per person. 

1.  Proposed special use permit pursuant to Section 5-7 Flood Hazard Overlay District of the   

Town’s Zoning Ordinance, proposed development in the flood hazard district, currently zoned 

B-1, Limited Business District, 128 Park Street, Tax Map # 013-1-120F1 

J. RESOLUTIONS 

      1.  Resolution approving proposed special use permit to Section 5-7 Flood Hazard Overlay  

           District of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, proposed development in the flood hazard district,  

           currently zoned B-1, Limited Business District, 128 Park Street, Tax Map #013-1-120F1–  

          Mayana Rice, Assistant Town Manager and Director of Community Development 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

      1.  Consideration of proposed amendment to Veterans Advisory Board Ordinance by adding an  

           additional three members – Mike Cochran, Town Manager 

2.   Consideration of proposed amendment to the Town of Abingdon Code of Ordinances,  

      Chapter 58 – Solid Waste – Mayana Rice, Asst. Town Manager and Director of Community  



      Development 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS 

N. NEW BUSINESS 

O. OLD BUSINESS 

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER 

      1.  Quarterly report from Abingdon Fire Department – Chief Tim Estes 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

  1. Virginia Highlands Small Business Incubator 

  -Reappointment of Sylvia Robbins, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

  -Reappointment of Michael Spiegler, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

  -Reappointment of Pamela Stone, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

  -Reappointment of Kent Peterson, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 2. Economic Development Authority  

 -Reappointment of Robert Trevorrow, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

3.   Tourism Advisory Committee 

 -Reappointment of Jack Barrow, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

S.  CLOSED SESSION  

T.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 



- 65 - 

July 10, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 
 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, JULY 10, 2023 – 6:30 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 The meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, July 10, 2023, at 6:30 

pm in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Pillion  

B. ROLL CALL  

 

Members of Council Present: 

 

 

 

 

Absent: 

Wayne Austin 

Donna Quetsch 

Derek Webb 

Mayor Pillion 

 

Vice Mayor Anderson 

  

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

D. PRAYER 

E. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

On motion of Mr. Austin, seconded by Mr. Webb, approved the agenda as presented.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

F. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES  

• June 5, 2023 

• June 22, 2023 

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Austin, approved the June 5, 2023, minutes 

as presented.  

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  



- 66 - 

July 10, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 
 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb                               Abstain (was not present for meeting) 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Mr. Austin, amended the June 22, 2023, minutes to 

reflect the following motion regarding an Ordinance proposing a budget, make 

appropriations for the current expenses, and to fix a tax rate upon real and personal 

property, for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024, as follows: 

 

On motion of Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Austin, the budget ordinance be passed with 

an amendment to the appropriation of the line item identified as “Use of General Fund 

Reserves” to be renamed “Council Appropriation Expenditures”, meaning that before 

funds may be expended from General Fund Reserves that Town management first obtain 

Town Council’s approval. 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

  

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

• Amanda Bailey, Washington County Public Library 

• Greg Lilly 

 

H. PROCLAMATIONS  

1.  Proclamation recognizing July as National Parks and Recreation Month 

 

Mr. Webb read the Proclamation into record.  Mayor Pillion presented members of the Abingdon 

Veterans Advisory Board with a framed proclamation. 

 

I. PUBLIC HEARING  

J. RESOLUTIONS 

K. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES 

1.  An Ordinance of the Council for the Town of Abingdon, proposing a budget, make  

     appropriation for the current expenses, and to fix a tax rate upon real and personal property  

    for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024. 

 



- 67 - 

July 10, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 
 

Town Manager Mike Cochran and Director of Finance Steve Trotman presented the 

proposed budget to Mayor Pillion and Councilmembers.  Discussion ensued. 

 

Mayor Pillion questioned shall the proposal be rejected.  Hearing no comments, the 

matter will continue to a second reading at the mid-month meeting.  

 

L. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCES 

M. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  

N. NEW BUSINESS 

O. OLD BUSINESS   

P. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM TOWN MANAGER  

 

 1.  Quarterly report from Abingdon Police Department 

 

Chief Jon Holbrook provided Council with a quarterly report stating that his officers are 

the Town’s biggest asset, a third School Resource Officer through a grant from last year and 

gave statistics regarding various traffic and criminal matters. 

 

Town Manager Mike Cochran encouraged everyone to attend the upcoming Virginia 

Highlands Festival and to participate in the Town-wide yard sale in August. 

 

Q. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  

  

Mr. Webb stated that the Fourth Celebration was great, and the fireworks were fantastic. 

 

R. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES  

1. Abingdon Redevelopment and Housing Authority 

  -Appointment to fill unexpired term of Debbie Loveland  

 2. Tourism Advisory Committee  

 -Appointment to fill expired vacancy of Kathy Shearer 

3.   Infrastructure Advisory Committee 

 -Appointment to fill unexpired vacancy of Wayne Craig 

4.  Planning Commission 

 -Reappointment of Kirk Sproles, who is eligible to serve an additional term 

 

On motion of Mr. Webb, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, to go into closed session pursuant to 

the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of 

considering applications for appointment/reappointment for the position(s) on Abingdon 

Redevelopment and Housing Authority, Tourism Advisory Committee, Infrastructure 

Advisory Committee and Planning Commission. 

 

         The roll call vote was as follows:  

  



- 68 - 

July 10, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 
 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

On motion by Mr. Webb, seconded by Mrs. Quetsch, reconvened in open session. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

 Mr. Webb moved that the Town Council certify that, in closed session just concluded, 

nothing was discussed except the matter or matters (1) specifically identified in the motion 

to convene in closed session and (2) lawfully permitted to be discussed under the provisions 

of the Virginia Freedom of Information Act cited in the motion.  

  

The certification was as follows:   

 

      Mr. Austin I so certify 

      Mrs. Quetsch I so certify 

      Mr. Webb    I so certify 

      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

      Mayor Pillion I so certify 

 

On motion by Mrs. Quetsch, seconded by Mr. Austin, appointed Janet Woolwine to the 

Abingdon Redevelopment and Housing Authority; Tina Murray to the Tourism Advisory 

Committee; Mike Owens to the Infrastructure Advisory Committee; and reappointed Kirk 

Sproles to serve an additional term on the Planning Commission. 

  

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

 Mr. Austin Aye 

    Mrs. Quetsch Aye 

                      Mr. Webb Aye 

                      Vice Mayor Anderson Absent 

                      Mayor Pillion Aye 

 

S. CLOSED SESSION  



- 69 - 

July 10, 2023 

Council meeting minutes 
 
 

  

Mayor Pillion declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

            

    ___________________________________  

     Mayor Amanda Pillion 

 

_______________________________ 

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 



TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Building • Planning • Code Enforcement 

1 
133 West Main Street • PO Box 789 • Abingdon, VA 24212 

P: 276-628-3167 • F: 276-698-3412 

APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

Street Address 

128 Park Street SE,  

City, State, Zip Code 

Abingdon, VA  24210 

Parcel Number 

Lot 013-1-120F1 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 

Name 

Vintage Properties of Virginia, LLC 

Phone 

276 525-2031 

Mailing Address, City, State, Zip Code 

2933 Heathmoor Ln, Charlotte, NC, 28211, USA 

Select Applicant Relation to Property below: 

Property Owner 

☐ Property Owner   ☐ Lessee   ☐ Other: 

Email 

ddalton@vintagepropertiesva.com 

O
w

n
e

r 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

Name of Owner 

David Dalton 

Phone 

704 996-6406 

Mailing Address, City, State, Zip Code 

2933 Heathmoor Ln, Charlotte, NC, 28211, USA 

Name of Business 

Vintage Properties of Virginia 

Email 

davidgdalton@outlook.com 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 

1) 

A Special Use Permit is required under: 

Section Number: 15-9 

Zoning Ordinance in 
Zone: B1 

For the Use Of: Renovation within AE Flood way Fringe District 

2) 

Describe the proposed improvements and give details of operation(s). Describe operations thoroughly, as required by section 17-3-2 of the 
Zoning Ordinance and attach separate sheets if necessary: 

Reference App ID 1142, 21-00050 - As a continuance, we will complete the renovation based 
on plans from Smith / Slovak Design Team - Submitted by Kasay Construction. 

3) 

Is this a new development:   ☐ Yes   ☐ No 

No 
 

If Yes, a site plan must be attached showing boundaries and dimensions of property, width of internal and external streets, location and size 
of building(s) on the site, roadways, walks, off street parking, landscaping, and signs. (Ref. Article 18 of the Town of Abingdon Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

If yes, have you attached the site plan?   ☐ Yes   ☐ N/A 
 

A
p

p
lic

an
t 

Si
gn

at
u

re
 

I understand that the deadline for applications for special use permits are due on the first Monday of the month in order for the application to be placed on that month’s agenda. 
The staff needs to have sufficient time to review site plans and post public notices per VA code section 15.2-2204. Applications received after the deadline will be heard at the 
following month’s meeting. If applications is not complete, it will not be included on the next meeting’s agenda. 

I understand code 15.2-2206, Code of Virginia, as amended. I hereby certify that I am the owner of the record herein described property, or that the proposed work has been 
authorized by the owner of record and that I have been authorized to make this application as a designated agent. I agree to conform to all applicable state and local regulations, 
rules, and policies and such shall be deemed a condition entering into the exercise of the permit. In addition, if a permit is issued, I certify that the code official or his authorized 
representative shall have the authority to enter the area(s) described herein for the purpose of enforcing the provisions of the applicable code(s). I certify all answers to questions 
and additional statements, within this application for permit, are true, as confirmed by my signature below. 

Office Use Only 

Fees: $___________________ 



TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Building • Planning • Code Enforcement 

2 
133 West Main Street • PO Box 789 • Abingdon, VA 24212 

P: 276-628-3167 • F: 276-698-3412 

Applicant (Print Name) 

David G Dalton 

Signature of Applicant 

 

Date 

May 21, 2023 

O
w

n
e

r 
A

ff
id

a
vi

t 

My signature below  confirms that  I am familiar  with  the Code  of Virginia,  Title 54.1-1111 which  regulates contractors; I am aware that  anyone who performs work  for me is 
required to have a state contractor license and  trade certification (if applicable); that  I may be subject to with-holding taxes for those  working on my project; and  that  I am not 
subject  to licensure as a contractor or subcontractor for this project. 

Property Owner (Print Name) 

David Dalton 

Signature of Property Owner 

 

Date 

May 21, 2023 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY OWNERS 

➢ List ALL adjacent property owners, street addresses, and parcels. 

 

➢ Adjacent property means a parcel of land which shares all or part of a common property line with another parcel 

of land.  

 

➢ This includes properties that immediately join yours AND properties across streets, highways, bridges, sidewalks, 

railroads, etc. 



TOWN OF ABINGDON 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Building • Planning • Code Enforcement 

3 
133 West Main Street • PO Box 789 • Abingdon, VA 24212 

P: 276-628-3167 • F: 276-698-3412 

St Thomas Episcopal Church: 124 East Main Street, Abingdon, VA 24210 
Dale Douthit: 1534 Cherry Bark Lane, Charlottesville, VA  22911 
Vintage Properties of Virginia, LLC: 124 Park St SE & 121/123 Railroad Street 
Renaissance Projects LLC: 134 Park St SE and 213 Pecan St 
Harris Lodge: PO Box 484, Damascus, VA  24236 

Attachment for Site Plan: , MB 



  

 

 

S T A F F R E P O R T 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

  

TO: TOWN COUNCIL 

 

FROM:  TYLER VENCILL, MAYANA RICE, GABE CRISTOFARI 

 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR ADDITIONS TO 

AN EXISTING STRUCTURE WITHIN THE FLOOD HAZARD 

DISTRICT   

 

PUBLICATION 

DATE:  JULY 31, 2023 

 

MEETING 

DATE:  AUGUST 7, 2023 

 

 

LOCATION:  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, TOWN HALL 

  133 WEST MAIN STREET, ABINGDON, VA 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

REQUEST: 

 

Vintage Properties of Virginia, LLC (Owner/Applicant) have requested approval of a 

Special Use Permit per Section 5-7-16 of the Town of Abingdon Zoning Ordinance to 

complete a substantial improvement in the AE Flood Hazard District, located at 128 Park 

Street, Abingdon VA (Parcel 013-1-120F1).  

 

This application is specific to the new front and wrap around porch additions.  The existing 

structure already obtained approval to be located within the AE Flood Hazard District.  

 

The property is currently zoned Limited Business District (B-1).    

 



 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  2 

VICINITY MAP:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FLOOD HAZARDS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  3 

ZONING MAP:  

 

 

 

  

OH 

B-1 

R-3 



 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  4 

STAFF FINDINGS: 

 

1. Location. The Subject Property contains approximately 0.201 acres and contains one 

structure 128 Park Street otherwise known as the Dooly House.  

 

2. Background. Before the Dooly House was moved from its original location at 123 Pecan 

Street, Parcel 013-1-120F1 was vacant. In the Spring/Summer of 2021 the Dooly House 

was moved to its current location due to the threat of demolition. The Dooly House and 

a rear addition was approved to be placed in the Flood Hazard District via a Special Use 

Permit granted by the Planning Commission and Town Council based on a previous flood 

study.   

 

3. Access. Access to the site will continue to be Park Street.   

 

4. Adjacent Land Uses/Zoning. Adjoining properties on all sides are zoned B-1 (Limited 

Business District). 

 

5. Topography. The parcel is relatively flat in this location.   

 

6. Applicable Requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Flood Hazard Overlay District.  

 

Section 5-7-16. District Provisions. 

 

(a) All uses, activities and development occurring within the Flood Hazard Overlay shall be 

undertaken only upon the issuance of a special use permit. Such development shall be 

undertaken only in strict compliance with the provisions of this division and with all other 

applicable codes and ordinances, as amended, such as the Virginia Uniform Statewide 

Building Code (VA USBC is available online, public libraries and at the office of the 

building official at the Abingdon Town Hall) and Article X, Subdivision, of this chapter of 

the Town Code of Abingdon.[1] Under no circumstances shall any use, activity and/or 

development adversely affect the capacity of the channels or floodways or any watercourse, 

drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or system. 

Staff Findings:  

Town Engineer, Tyler Vencill has provided an analysis (see attachment) and made the 

determination that this does require a special use permit in order to redevelop this 

structure. 

 

 

 



 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  5 

(b) Site plans and permit applications. All applications for development within any flood 

hazard district and all permits issued for the flood hazard districts shall incorporate the 

following information: 

 

(1) The elevation of the base flood at the site. 

(2) The elevation of the lowest floor (including basement). 

(3) For structures to be flood-proofed (non-residential only), the elevation to which the 

structure will be flood-proofed. 

(4) Topographic information showing existing and proposed ground elevations. 

 

Staff Findings:  

A site plan was submitted that complied with the requirements for 5-7-16.  

 

 

15-9-4.  

The following uses shall be permissible in the floodway district provided that they are in 

compliance with the provisions of the underlying district and provided that the development 

will not increase base flood elevations: 

(c)  

Open accessory residential uses such as yard areas, gardens, play areas and previous loading 

areas, but not storage or other structures. 

(d)  

Encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements and other 

developments are prohibited unless certification such as hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 

(with supporting technical data) is provided demonstrating that encroachments shall not result 

in any increase in flood levels during occurrence of the base flood. Hydrologic and hydraulic 

analyses shall be undertaken only by professional engineers or others of demonstrated 

qualifications, who shall certify that the technical methods used correctly reflect currently-

accepted technical concepts. Studies, analyses, computations, etc., shall be submitted in 

sufficient detail to allow a thorough review by the administrator. Development activities which 

increase the water surface elevation of the base flood may be allowed, provided that the 

developer or applicant first applies — with the Town of Abingdon's endorsement — for a 

conditional flood insurance rate map and floodway revision, and receives the approval of the 

Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

 

 

https://ecode360.com/37180356#37180356
https://ecode360.com/37180359#37180359
https://ecode360.com/37180360#37180360


 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  6 

(e)  

If Section 15-9-5(d) is satisfied, all new construction and substantial improvements shall 

comply with all applicable flood hazard reduction provisions of Section 15-12. 

 

Section 5-7-18. Existing structures in the floodplain. 

 

A structure or use of a structure or premises which lawfully existed before the enactment of 

this chapter, but which is not in conformity with this chapter may be continued subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

(1) Exiting structures and/or uses in the floodway district shall not be expanded or 

enlarged unless it has been demonstrated through hydrologic and hydraulic analyses 

performed in accordance with standard engineering practices that the proposed 

expansion would not result in any increase in the base flood elevation. 

 

(2) Any modification, alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvement of any kind to a 

structure and/or use located in any flood hazard district to an extent or amount of less 

than 50% of its market value (determined by an independent licensed appraiser and as 

based upon percentage determination of a registered design professional, at the burden 

of the applicant) shall conform to the VA USBC. 

 

(3) The modification, alteration, repair, reconstruction, or improvement of any kind to a 

structure and/or use, regardless of its location in a flood hazard district to an extent or 

amount of 50% or more of its market value (determined by an independent licensed 

appraiser and as based upon percentage determination of a registered design 

professional, at the burden of the applicant) shall be undertaken only in full compliance 

with this division and shall require the entire structure to conform to the VA USBC. 

Staff Findings:   

Based on the revised flood study, Tyler Vencill, Town Engineer recommends approval of 

the Special Use Permit, solely on the basis of the utilization of the Flood Hazard District. 

If any future development of this site including new encroachments or construction, an 

additional analysis will be required. This development should be undertaken only in 

strict compliance with the provisions of any other applicable codes or ordinances. 

 

STAFF SUGGESTED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, WITH RECOMMENDATION OF 

APPROVAL BY PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

 If the Town Council decides to approve the Special Use Permit request, staff suggests the 

following conditions of approval be attached in order to secure substantial protection for 

public health, safety, and general welfare: 

 

https://ecode360.com/37180361#37180361
https://ecode360.com/37180348#37180413


 

 

 

128 Park Street “The Dooly House” SUP  7 

1. Submittal of all applicable building permits to the Community Development 

Department to ensure compliance with the VA USBC for both construction 

permitting and for any required flood proofing.  

 

REQUIRED ACTIONS OF THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

 

A. Sample Motions. The role of the Town Counil in this instance is to decide on the Special 

Use Permit request. The following sample motions have been provided by Staff for 

consideration by the Town Council: 

 

• Sample Motion for Approval: I move to approve 128 Park Street otherwise known 

as The Dooly House Special Use Permit, with approval subject to all applicable laws 

and regulations, staff findings and staff recommended conditions.  

 
Exhibits: 

 A: Applicant’s Submittal Packet 

 B: Town Engineer Memo  

 

   



   

1 

March 15, 2021 
Revised May 10, 2023 (New Building Footprint) 
 
Mr. Dave Dalton 
Via email 
 
Re: Flood Plain Impact Analysis for Park Street Lot, Abingdon VA  
 
Dear Mr. Dalton: 
 
Pursuant to your request, we have performed a hydrologic analysis of the impact to the 1% chance 
flood elevation under FEMA guidelines of a new building to be placed on the vacant lot at tax map 
013-1-120F1. 
 
The drainage way analyzed for an impact is the Tributary to Town Creek near Mile 2.22.  A detailed 
study of this area has not been performed by FEMA for the Tributary. 
 
The project will include the placement of a residence in the center of the lot which will be in the in the 
1% zone including the floodway.  An addition will be constructed on the rear of the placed residence 
with a porch beyond.  A front porch entry stair will be added to the front of the placed residence.  The 
total width of the existing building is 20 ft.  The front porch is proposed to be 6 ft, the rear addition 23 
ft 4 in, and the rear porch 12 ft. 
 
A HEC-RAS analysis of the channel has been prepared to analyze the impact of the residence on the 
100 yr (1%) flood elevation.  There is an existing 48” RCP storm pipe and an elliptical 27”x42” CMP 
flowing under Park Street.  For this analysis, the flow capacity of these pipes has been deducted from 
the total flow. 
 
The flow rate from the tributary is not provided in the detailed flood study; therefore, USGS Stream 
Stats was used to determine the design flow of 392 cfs. 
 
Attached are the detailed calculations for the BFE with pertinent data as follows: 
  
 100 yr Flow Rate (from FEMA Detailed Study)   392 cfs 
 48” RCP Flow Capacity      143.64 cfs 
 27”x42” Flow Capacity      35.67 cfs 
 Remaining Flow Rate      212 
 Assumed BFE at Downstream      2037.8 
 Calculated 100 Yr BFE at the residence existing  2039.12 
 100 Yr BFE at the residence after placement   2039.23 
 Calculated 100 Yr BFE at section 3 before placement  2042.75 
 100 Yr BFE at section 3 after placement    2042.75 
 
Where section 3 is the further upstream section of the analysis. 
 



 

            2 

 

 
 
 

 
 



 

            3 

 

 
 



 

            4 

 

 



 

            5 

 

Analysis of Existing Condition: 

 

. 
 

 
 
 
 
 Analysis after Residence Placement and Addition 

 
 
 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400
2038

2039

2040

2041

2042

dalton       Plan: Plan 10    5/11/2023 
  1B

Stati on (ft)

E
le

v
a
tio

n
 (

ft
)

Legend

EG P F 1

WS P F 1

Crit P F 1

Ground

Bank Sta

.035 .035 .035

0 100 200 300 400 500 600
2038

2040

2042

2044

2046

dalton       Plan: Plan 10    5/11/2023 
  1a

Stati on (ft)

E
le

v
a
tio

n
 (

ft
)

Legend

EG P F 1

WS P F 1

Crit P F 1

Ground

Bank Sta

.035 .035 .035



 

            6 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400
2035

2040

2045

2050

2055

2060

2065

2070

dalton       Plan: Plan 09    5/11/2023 
  1B

Stati on (ft)

E
le

v
a
tio

n
 (

ft
)

Legend

EG P F 1

WS P F 1

Crit P F 1

Ground

Bank Sta

.035 .035 .035

0 100 200 300 400 500 600
2035

2040

2045

2050

2055

2060

dalton       Plan: Plan 09    5/11/2023 
  1a

Stati on (ft)

E
le

v
a

tio
n

 (
ft

)

Legend

EG P F 1

WS P F 1

Crit P F 1

Ground

Bank Sta

.035 .035 .035



 

            7 

 

Based on this analysis, in my professional opinion, the placement of the residence on the vacant lot 
will result in a rise of 0.11 ft.  It is recommended that all materials which would be damaged by flood 
waters be placed at an elevation higher than 2040.23 ft and a waterproof or flow-vent type foundation 
be used. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or require further information. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 

 
 
Matthew T. Bundy, P.E.  
Vice President  
 

 



A RESOLUTION APPROVING SPECIAL USE PERMIT PURSUANT TO SECTION 5-7 

UTILIZATION OF FLOOD HAZARD DISTRICT OF THE TOWN OF ABINGDON 

ZONING ORDINANCE, PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT IN THE FLOOD HAZARD 

DISTRICT, CURRENTLY B-1 LIMITED BUSINESS DISTRICT, LOCATED AT 128 

PARK STREET ABINDGON, VIRGINIA, TAX MAP NO. 013-1-120F1 

 

WHEREAS, §15.2-2200 of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, established that the 

governing body of any town may enact and enforce ordinances for the general purpose of 

promoting the public health, safety, convenience and welfare of its general public; and  

WHEREAS, the Town adopted an Ordinance on January 2, 2023, pursuant to Section 5- 7 

Utilization of the Flood Hazard District of the Town’s Zoning Ordinance, for all uses, activities 

and development occurring within any Flood Hazard District shall be undertaken only upon the 

issuance of a special use permit.  

WHEREAS, the Planning Department of the Town reviewed the application requesting a 

special use permit and made a report of its findings and recommendations to the Planning 

Commission on June 26, 2023.  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and made a recommendation of 6 to 1 in 

favor of approval to the Town Council concerning the application of a special use permit on June 

26, 2023.  

NOW THEREFORE, LET IT RESOLVED, the Town Council has determined that the 

development would not adversely affect the capacity of the channels or floodways or any 

watercourse, drainage ditch or any other drainage facility or system as a result of approving special 

use permit, pursuant to Section 5-7 Utilization of the Flood Hazard District of the Town’s Zoning 

Ordinance, for development in the Flood Hazard District, currently zoned B-1, Limited Business  

District, located at 128 Park Street, Abingdon, Virginia, Tax Map # 013-1-120F1 justifying 

issuance of said special use permit and the Community Development Department shall issue a 

Special Use Permit reflecting the approval of this Ordinance.  

 

      _______________________________ 

       Amanda Pillion, Mayor 

 

The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting of 

the Council held on August 7, 2023. I hereby certify that such meeting was a regularly scheduled 

meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I 

further certify that the minutes of meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, during the 

consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I further certify that the minutes 

of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and the voting on the foregoing ordinance 

was as follows:  



MEMBERS  ATTENDANCE  VOTE 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   

Dwayne Anderson, Vice 

Mayor 

  

Derek Webb   

Donna Quetsch   

Wayne Austin    

 

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of    , 2023.  

 

(SEAL)  

 

             

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 
 



 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL  

FOR THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA  

REGARDING NUMBER OF APPOINTED MEMBERS AND TERMS 

 TO THE VETERANS ADVISORY BOARD 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to §15.2-1411 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, a 

governing body of any locality may appoint such advisory boards and committees as it deems 

necessary to advise the governing body regarding any matter of concern to the locality; and  

WHEREAS, an Ordinance enacting the Veterans Advisory Board was established to assist 

with the development of programs and events to honor and recognize the service of area Veterans; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Veterans Advisory Board was given the following powers and duties: 

A. Provide recommendations to the Town on issues of interest to Veterans, military 

 service members, and their families;  

B. Encourage and promote awareness of Veterans and military service members in 

 the community; 

C. Assist the Town with planning events and programs honoring Veterans and 

 military service members; and 

D. Assist the Town with oversight of the Veterans Memorial Park. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Veterans Advisory Board shall consist of one ex officio Councilmember 

appointed by the Town Council to serve terms coincident with their terms as members of the 

Council.  The Town Council will name a Town employee designee as an ex officio member to 

serve as staff support for the Board.  Town Council will appoint eleven citizens to serve as set 

forth below.  A quorum for the transaction of business by the Board shall be at least six voting 

members. 

 

 Four members will serve a term of two years from the appointment date; three will serve a 

term of three years from the appointment date; and four will serve a term of four years from the 

appointment date.  The Town Council will give preference to residents of the Town, consider how 

the individual will contribute to the establishment of the Board, and consider any potential conflicts 

of interest to ensure objectivity; and  

WHEREAS, the Board shall conduct an annual organizational meeting to elect a chair and 

vice-chair at the first meeting in July annually.  The Town Clerk, or designee, shall serve as 

secretary.  The secretary shall cause a record of all proceedings, resolutions, findings, and actions 

taken by the committee; and 



 WHEREAS, the Board shall meet as often as necessary to accomplish its duties, with such 

meetings called by the chair, or the vice chair in the chair’s absence; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the recommendation of the Council for the 
Town of Abingdon, the number of appointed members and terms to the Veterans Advisory 
Board, be amended as presented.  

 

CERTIFICATE 

 

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, I hereby certify that I 

have reviewed the foregoing proposed Amended Ordinance of the Town of Abingdon to reflect 

the foregoing amendment and find it to be in correct form this 7th day of August 2023. 

 

_______________________________ 

Cameron Bell 

Town Attorney for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

 

This Ordinance was adopted on _______________ to take effect on ______________________. 

 

_____________________________ 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor 

 

The undersigned clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an Amended Ordinance duly adopted at a 

meeting of the Council held on August 7, 2023.  I hereby further certify that such meeting was a 

regularly scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing Amended 

Ordinance, a quorum was present.  I further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the 

attendance of the members and the voting on the foregoing Amended Ordinance was as follows: 
      

MEMBERS ATENDANCE VOTE   

Amanda Pillion, Mayor  
  

Dwyane Anderson, Vice Mayor  
  

Derek Webb 
  

Donna Quetsch 
  

Wayne Austin 
  

     

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of August 7, 2023. 

 

(SEAL)______________________________   

Town Clerk   
 
 



  

 

 

MEMO 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

  

TO: ABINGDON TOWN COUNCIL  

 

FROM:  MAYANA RICE, ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER 

 

SUBJECT: SECTION 38-28 WEEDS AND TRASH AS A PUBLIC NUISANCE 

 

PUBLICATION 

DATE:  JULY 30, 2023 

 

MEETING 

DATE:  AUGUST 7, 2023  

 

 

LOCATION:  COUNCIL CHAMBERS, TOWN HALL 

            133 WEST MAIN STREET, ABINGDON, VA 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Staff has been working on the Solid Waste Ordinance for the Town of Abingdon to provide 

clarification of definitions, updated procedures and ensure compliance capabilities.  The following 

items are proposed to be changed: 

 

Waste containers: These are to become owned by the purchaser upon starting an account.  In the 

past it has been extremely difficult to maintain a database of cans.  To eliminate this unnecessary 

task the Town of Abingdon will be selling the waste container to the property owners.  If an owner 

wishes to have a new can, they can purchase one. If a can is damaged by the Town of Abingdon, 

it will be the responsibility of the Town to replace those cans.  

 

Commercial Service Requirements: When the established thresholds are met a business 

(commercial, multifamily, industrial, mobile home park, etc.) shall acquire a commercial dumpster 

service.  Existing businesses that may currently have Town of Abingdon waste containers are 

“grandfathered in” and will not be required to convert their service to a dumpster.  However, should 

said businesses be discontinued a new business will not be allowed to retain the Town of Abingdon 

service.  

 

Bi-Annual Billing: Currently the billing of solid waste is attached to the monthly wastewater bill.   

However, the wastewater billing has a complication in the fact that it is a delayed usage rate per 

the WCSA reporting methodology. Staff compared billing mechanisms from other communities 

and found that the billing can be connected to the Real Estate billing.  This will place the 

responsibility for payment on the landowner, twice annually.  

 

Brush / Bulky Trash Fee:  Two key services that the Town of Abingdon provides is a weekly 

brush pick up and a monthly bulky trash pickup.  While these services are part of the solid waste 



 

 

 

Weed memo for Town Council     2 

fees, many commercial businesses, multifamily complexes, mobile home parks continue to place 

brush and bulky trash for pick up without payment of fees.  The ordinance establishes a solid waste 

fee for all commercial establishments, paying for the services that are currently being provided.   

 

Staff is requesting the Town Council review the edits and decide if they agree with the analysis 

and changes by voting on an ordinance amendment.   



 

§ 58-41 Collection generally. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) The Town shall provide for the collection of all basic solid waste within the Town, provided 
that the Town employees and vehicles necessary for solid waste collection can access the Town-
issued solid waste container(s) while remaining on public rights-of-way. The Town may provide 
the collection service by contracting with an individual, corporation, county or other Town or a 
combination thereof, for the entire Town or portions thereof, as deemed to be in best interest of 
the Town. All other generators of other types of solid waste shall through arrangement under 
private contract, provide for the safe, legal, and timely disposal of solid waste. 

(b) As part of the collection of solid waste, and in order to meet state mandated recycling goals, 
the Town may provide for a recycling program for the basic solid waste, single-family, 
residential refuse customers of the Town. Under the program, the Town may provide to such 
customers once a week curbside pickup from special containers furnished by the Town or the 
Town's contractor for recyclable materials, which may include paper, aluminum, plastics, metal 
and bimetal cans and other materials determined by the Town Manager or the Town's contractor. 
The Town or its contractor may transport, market, and dispose of the recycled material which, 
upon collection, shall become the property of the Town. As part of the recycling program, the 
Town may also assist private and public recycling efforts that take place within the Town and 
benefit Town citizens, especially those not currently served by the Town's recycling program. 

(c) The service of collecting solid waste is designed as an integral part of the Town's program of 
health and sanitation, to be operated as an adjunct to the Town's system for providing sanitary 
sewage disposal. All liquid waste shall be drained from garbage before the garbage is placed in a 
Town-issued solid waste container, and the liquid shall then be disposed of in the sanitary sewer 
system. 

(d) Solid waste collectors employed by the Town, or a solid waste collection agency operating 
under contract with the Town, shall be responsible for the collection of solid waste from the 
point of collection. Any spillage or blowing of waste as a result of the duties of the solid waste 
collector shall be collected and placed in the transportation vehicle by the solid waste collector. 

§ 58-42 Rules and regulations governing storage, collection, processing, and disposal of basic 
solid waste by the Town. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) The Town ManagerTown Manager or designee, subject to the review of the Town Council, 
shall make, amend, revoke and enforce reasonable and necessary rules and regulations 
governing, but not limited to the following: 

(1) Preparation, drainage and wrapping of garbage deposited in Town-issued solid waste 
containers. 



(2) Specifications for Town-issued solid waste containers, including the type, composition, 
equipment, size and shape thereof. 

(3) Maximum number of units or entities within a parcel, property or development eligible for 
Town solid waste collection service, and the maximum number of Town-issued solid waste 
containers per same units, entities, properties or developments. 

(4) Identification of Town-issued solid waste containers and of the cover thereof, and of 
equipment thereto appertaining, if any. 

(5) Weight limitations on the combined weight of Town-issued solid waste containers and the 
contents thereof, and weight and size limitations on solid waste too large for Town-issued solid 
waste containers. 

(6) Storage of solid waste in Town-issued solid waste containers. Upon paying for a Town-
issued solid waste container it becomes the property of the purchaser. All cans shall be 
maintained by the purchaser. If damage occurs due to Town collection protocols, the Town will 
replace the solid waste container in whole or part based on the damage.  

(7) Sanitation, maintenance and replacement of Town-issued solid waste containers. 

(8) Schedules of and routes for collection and transportation of solid waste. 

(9) Collection, transportation, processing and disposal of solid waste. 

(10) Processing facilities and fees for the use thereof. 

(11) Disposal facilities and fees for the use thereof. 

(12) Records of quality and type of wastes received at processing and disposal facilities. 

(13) Handling of special wastes such as toxic wastes, sludges, ashes, agriculture and construction 
wastes, bulk items, tires, automobiles, oils, grease, etc. 

(14) Recycling. 

The Town ManagerTown Manager or designee may allow an exception to the above rules and 
regulations if deemed a benefit to public health and safety, and if it does not interfere with the 
safe and efficient operation of the Town solid waste collection service. 

(b) A copy of all rules and regulations made and promulgated under the provisions of this section 
shall be filed in the office of the Town Clerk and shall have the same force and effect as if set 
forth fully in this article. 

§ 58-43 Frequency of collection. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

Residential and light commercial basic solid waste shall be collected once a week. Recyclable 
materials, when offered, shall be collected once a week, and the collection routes and schedule 
shall be the same as the basic solid waste collection. The Town ManagerTown Manager or 



designee may vary the frequency of collection prescribed by this section to accommodate Town 
observed holidays.  

 

USE 

RESIDENTIAL   COMMERCIAL  
GREASE AND 
HAZARDOUS  

   Light 
Commercial   

Heavy 
Commercial  

Grease 
Trap  

Hazardous 
Waste  

Owner or tenant 
may purchase up 
to 2 garbage cans 

Owner or 
tenant may 

purchase up to 
3 garbage cans 

Commercial 
service 
required. 

Commercial service 
required. 

    
Single Family resident   X  X          

Duplex   X  X          

Tri‐Plex   X  X          

Quad   X  X          

Mobile Home                  X         

Mobile Home Parks      X     

Office  usage (15 or 
fewer spaces or 
tenants)      X          

Office usage (15 or 
greater spaces or 
tenants)         X       

Café, restaurant or 
other food 
establishment         X  X    

Food production / 
Catering         X  X    

Retail less than 10,000 
sf or Home Business      X          

Retail larger than 
10,000 sf         X       

Medical Office          X     X 

Landscaping Company         X       

Entertainment 
facilities         X       

Other uses not defined   **As determined by the Town of Abingdon Town Manager orf designee  

 



§ 58-44 Placement for collection; permitted and excluded contents. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) All Town-issued solid waste containers containing basic solid waste for collection by the 
Town shall be set out not later than 7:00 a.m. on collection days, and not later than 6:30 a.m. on 
collection days for those that place their Town-issued solid waste containers along Main Street 
for collection, and shall be placed in such location as may be specified by the Town Manager or 
his designee so that they can be reached easily and conveniently by the Town's employees and 
solid waste collection vehicles and equipment. No Town employee shall enter any building for 
the removal of solid waste. 

(b) All basic solid waste from premises to which collection services are provided by the Town, 
as well as bulky rubbish, brush, and white goods, as described in sections 58-46 and 58-69 
respectively, shall be placed at the curb or edge of the street or alley for collection. Recycled 
materials must be placed in the container provided by the Town or its agent and placed at the 
curb or edge of the street or alley for collection. Any Town-issued solid waste containers, 
recycling containers, or other solid wastes either required or permitted to be placed at the curb or 
edge of the street or alley for collection shall be placed so as not to create a nuisance, obstruct the 
flow of stormwater, or block sidewalks or other traveled ways. Empty containers shall be 
removed from the right-of-way and returned to their place of storage, behind the building setback 
line, within 24 hours of the time of collection. If containers are continuously or habitually left at 
the collection location longer than 24 hours after the time of collection, that shall constitute a 
violation of this ordinance that may result in termination of service. 

(c) All garbage containing liquid or animal or vegetable matter subject to decay or fermentation 
shall be drained of moisture before being placed in the receptacles provided therefore. Liquid 
wastes may not be disposed of in Town-issued solid waste containers.  

(d) Demolition and construction waste, factory cuttings, trade wastes, commercial landscaping 
waste not generated on the site,  or similar materials shall not be set out for removal by the Town 
or its agent. Such materials shall be disposed of by the occupants of the premises on which they 
are collected. 

(e) All garbage can containing more than 50% animal waste shall not be collected. 

§ 58-45 Collection charges. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) There is hereby imposed, for the collection and disposal of solid waste, for the payment of the 
county tipping fee, and for the improvement of the general public health and environment, a 
solid waste collection service charge for each dwelling unit and each light commercial solid 
waste business  and commercial or residential establishment generating basic solid waste within 
the Town. The service charges for collection of residential solid waste, interest, penalties, and 
fees shall be as established by the Town Council Manager or designee from time to time. The 
residential fee per dwelling unit per calendar month is for up to three residential solid waste 



containers per week. Residences which have requirements in excess of this amount will be 
required to provide for their own legal disposal. Commercial establishments which have a 
requirement in excess of this amount will be required to provide for their own legal disposal. 

(b) The director of finance, or such other Town official who is responsible for preparing utility 
and other service charge billings for the TownTown Manager or designee, is hereby authorized 
to make and promulgate reasonable and necessary rules and regulations for the billing and 
collection of the disposal service charges provided for in this section. A copy of all such rules 
and regulations shall be filed in the office of the Town Clerk. 

(c) The Town may enforce collection of the charges provided for in this section by bringing 
proper legal action against the occupant of any dwelling unit or owner of any commercial 
establishment to recover any sums due, plus a reasonable attorney's fee to be fixed by the court, 
plus the cost of such action as well as any applicable fees and interest. 

(d) The charges provided for in this section and the bills therefore shall be governed by the 
applicable provisions of this Code or applicable Town rules and regulations relating to charges 
for sanitary sewer service and interest and penalties on late payments among other provisions. 
However, if solid waste collection charges are not paid, collection will be refused when the 
charges become two months past due. If solid waste collection service is discontinued due to 
non-payment of collection charges, a fee of $20 will be charged to resume collection service. 

(e) The Town Manager or designee is authorized and directed, on application, to exempt from 
the payment of charges imposed by this section those elderly or disabled citizens who qualify for 
(but do not necessarily participate in) the real estate tax exemption or deferral program. These 
latter exemptions shall apply to the exemption herein created, with necessary changes, except no 
requirement of real estate ownership shall exist, the scheduling of application for exemptions and 
notification to participants may be flexible, and there shall be no proration of the exemption. 

(f) Commencing January 1, 2024, and then following each fiscal year thereafter, the fees for 
solid waste collection shall be combined with the real estate tax billing and other billings 
included thereon, and when combined, payment will be applied first to the solid waste collection 
fees, then to any applicable stormwater utility fee and then to all other taxes and fessfees as 
determined by the Town Treasurer.  Provided, however, where any such account has one or more 
delinquent amounts past due, payment will be applied first to such fee or tax, together with 
cumulative interest and penalties thereon, thuis the most delinquent before the payment will be 
applied to any current amounts dues.  

(g) Pursuant to section § 15.2-105, Code of Virginia, Penalty and interest for failure to pay 
accounts when due:. aAny person failing to pay, pursuant to an ordinance, any account due a 
locality on or before its due date, other than taxes which are provided for in Title 58.1, may, at 
the option of the locality, incur a penalty thereon of an amount not exceeding ten percent.   
 

 

§ 58-46 Brush collection. 



[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) Brush, consisting of trimmings from trees and shrubbery, less than 10 feet in length and six 
inches in diameter to be collected by the Town or its agents, shall be placed in stacks parallel to 
the street in a manner which will not block vehicular travel, vehicular sight distance, storm 
drainage, sidewalks, entrances, or fire hydrants. Brush stacks shall be placed along the road 
frontage of the property that generates the brush, unless doing so creates one of the previous 
blockages. 

(b) If the brush stack for one property is greater than one truckload, the remainder of the brush 
stack will be hauled at such time as a vehicle is available in order not to interrupt the regular 
collection schedule. 

(c) Shrubbery trimmings and leaves shall be placed in stacks parallel to the street in the same 
manner as brush which will not block vehicle travel, vehicle sight distance, storm drainage, 
sidewalks, entrances, or fire hydrants. Materials shall not be of a hazardous nature nor shall any 
individual item weigh more than 50 pounds. 

(d) Clearing of a lot for development is not considered brush and must be collected and disposed 
of by the property owner.  Brush collection services shall not be provided for development waste 
through the removal of herbaceous material by a land owner or contractor.  

§ 58-46-A Brush collection charges for commercial properties.  

(a) Each commercial solid waste business, where brush is present, shall be charged a brush 
collection chargefee when service is provided.  The brush collection charge, interest, 
penalties, and fees shall be as established by the Town Manager or designee from time to 
time. 

 If a business is located in a development that has no landscaping, a request to waive the 
fee shall be applied for.  If it is determined that no herbaceous materials are produced on 
the site, a waiver may be granted.  

(b) The Town Manager or designee, is hereby authorized to make and promulgate reasonable 
and necessary rules and regulations for the billing and collection of the brush charges 
provided for in this section. A copy of all such rules and regulations shall be filed in the 
office of the Town Clerk. 

(c) $5.00 monthly residential weekly brush pick up.   
(d)  
 $25.00 for additional pick up at any address.  
(e) Each residential customer shall be provided brush pick up once a week.   
(f) Any and all additional required pick-ups shall be requested for an additional fee.  
(g) If brush is placed at curb more than 48 hours prior to pick up, the Town will charge the 

customer the additional pick-up fee.  

 

§ 58-47 Collection of bulky rubbish. 



[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) Bulky rubbish will be collected if separated from other waste and set out as prescribed by 
regulations to be made and promulgated by the Town ManagerTown Manager or designee 
pursuant to Section 58-42. 

(b) White goods shall be collected only during those days designated by the Town ManagerTown 
Manager or designee. This service is available only to locations receiving residential collection 
or multi-family / mobile home park services.  Bulky rubbish shall be placed roadside no more 
than 24 48 hours before scheduled collection 

(c) For all white goods which contain refrigeration units, the owner must remove the 
refrigeration unit and dispose of it according to federal and state regulations prior to setting the 
item out for collection by the Town or its agent. Any white goods that still have refrigeration 
units shall not be collected by the Town. 

(d) Bulky rubbish shall only be collected during days designated by the Town ManagerTown 
Manager or designee. This service is only available to locations receiving residential collection 
or multi-family / mobile home park service. 

(e) Bulky rubbish shall not be placed for collection in such a manner that it blocks vehicular 
travel, vehicular sight distance, storm drainage, sidewalks, entrances, or fire hydrants. Bulky 
rubbish shall be placed along the road frontage of the property that generates the bulky rubbish, 
unless doing so creates one of the previous blockages. Bulky rubbish shall be placed roadside no 
more than 24 48 hours before scheduled collection. 

(f) Any residential property owner is eligible to receive, for the cost of the tipping fee and a 
service charge to be established by the Town ManagerTown Manager or designee, and as 
equipment and staff availability allows, a service whereby the Town will deliver a trailer to a 
property within the Town corporate limits, allow up to a week for the user to load the trailer with 
bulky rubbish, then transport the trailer to the appropriate waste facility. The user will then be 
billed for the tipping fee and servicethe applicable charge. This service is restricted to one time 
per month per property.   

§ 58-47-A8- Bulky Trash collection charges.  

(a) Each Apartment Complex and Mobile Home Park shall be charged a Bulky Trash 
collection charge.  The Bulky Trash collection charge, interest, penalties, and fees shall 
be as established by the Town Manager or designee from time to time. 

(b) The Town Manager or designee, is hereby authorized to make and promulgate reasonable 
and necessary rules and regulations for the billing and collection of the Bulky Trash 
charges provided for in this section. A copy of all such rules and regulations shall be filed 
in the office of the Town Clerk. 

 $5.00 monthly residential weekly brush pick up.   
 $50.00 for additional pick up any residential address.  



(C)Any bulky trash placed in excess of 48 hours prior to the established pick up day shall be 
charged the additional pick-up fee.  If the invoice for pick up is not paid, the Town reserves the 
right to place a lien on the property until such time payment is received.  

 

§ 58-48 498 Ownership after collection. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

All solid waste, but not hazardous waste, collected for disposal or recycling shall become the 
property of the Town. 

§ 58-49 Interference with collection equipment or collectors. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere in any manner with solid waste collection and 
transportation equipment or with solid waste collectors in the lawful performance of their duties 
as such, whether such equipment or collector shall be those of the Town or those of a solid waste 
collection agency operating under contract with the Town. 

§ 58-50 Termination of collection service to vacant premises. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

The collection of solid waste and the service charge therefore shall be terminated upon 
presentation of satisfactory proof to the director of financeTown Manager or designee that any 
dwelling unit or other establishment is unoccupied; however, service to any such dwelling unit or 
establishment shall be recommenced upon renewed occupancy thereof. 

§ 58-51 Disposal generally. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) Solid wastes shall be deposited at a processing facility or disposal area, or recycled. It shall 
be unlawful for any person to dispose of solid waste at any facility or location that is not 
approved by the Town and the state department of health. 

(b) The directorTown Manager or designee may classify certain wastes as hazardous wastes. 
Hazardous wastes shall not be accepted for collection by the Town but shall be disposed of in a 
manner that meets all local, state and federal regulations by the generators of such waste. 

 

§ 58-52 General requirements for vehicles transporting solid waste. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

All vehicles used for the transportation of solid waste shall be maintained in a safe, clean and 
sanitary condition and shall be so constructed, maintained and operated as to prevent spillage of 



solid waste there from. Every such vehicle shall be constructed with a watertight body and with a 
cover which may be an integral part of the vehicle or may be a separate cover of suitable material 
with fasteners designed to secure the vehicle in transporting solid waste, or, as an alternate, the 
entire body thereof shall be enclosed, with only the loading hopper exposed. No solid waste shall 
be transported in the loading hopper. 

§ 58-53 Transportation of earth, rock and other loose material. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

Earth, rock, and other loose material shall be conveyed in tight vehicles, trucks or receptacles, so 
constructed and maintained that none of the material being transported shall spill upon the public 
rights-of-way. Vehicles shall be equipped with approved functioning covers, which shall be 
utilized to prevent the contents from blowing from the vehicle whenever it is in operation upon 
the public rights-of-way. 

§ 58-66 Required. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) The occupant of any dwelling unit generating residential solid waste, and of every 
institutional, commercial, business, and/or agricultural establishment producing light commercial 
solid waste within the corporate limits of the Town, that wishes to receive for a fee the Town's 
solid waste collection service, will be provided with up to three two Town-issued solid waste 
containers for a fee. The fee for the Town-issued solid waste containers shall be set by the Town 
Manager orf designee. Such occupant shall place all solid waste generated on the premises in the 
Town-issued solid waste containers, with the exception of bulky rubbish, large brush, white 
goods, and hazardous waste. The solid waste shall be placed in the Town-issued solid waste 
container so that the lid closes completely. 

(b) The requirements of Subsection (a) of this section, and the other rules in this article dealing 
with specifications for solid waste containers shall not apply to solid wastes to be recycled. 
Where recycling service is available, the Town or the Town's agent shall provide a suitable 
container or containers prescribed by the Town Manager, for recycling. The Town Manager 
and/or the Town's agent shall take appropriate steps to replace the recycling containers as 
necessary. 

§ 58-67 (Reserved) [1] 

[1] 

Editor's Note: Former § 58-67, which pertained to specifications — residential containers and 
derived from Ord. of 8-6-1993, was repealed by Ord. of 3-4-2013. 

§ 58-68 Commercial containers. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 



(a) Any commercial, industrial, institutional, or agricultural establishment that generates more 
solid waste than specified in the definition of light commercial solid waste, and any multi-family 
dwellings consisting of more than six units, shall be required to contract with a private solid 
waste collection provider for containers to be used for placing solid waste between collections, 
and for the collection of solid waste. The containers shall be waterproof and leak proof and shall 
meet all requirements of the state department of health. 

(b) Any one unit or entity receiving Town solid waste collection service that regularly exceeds 
the capacity of three Town-issued solid waste containers may be required to contract with a 
private solid waste collection provider for solid waste containers and collection. At that time, the 
Town-issued solid waste container will be recovered by the Town. 

§ 58-69 No containers for brush and yard wastes. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

Small yard wastes, such as grass clippings, shall be bagged and placed fully within the Town-
issued solid waste containers. Bulky yard waste shall be disposed of as provided in Section 58-
46by ordinance. 

§ 58-70 Solid waste to be kept covered. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

(a) Solid waste containers shall not be filled more than level full and shall be kept covered at all 
times except when depositing waste therein or removing the contents thereof. Basic solid waste 
set out for collection shall be enclosed within the required container with the lid completely 
closed. 

(b) Commercial dumpsters which habitually violate the closed lid requirement, or habitually 
have solid waste deposited outside of the container, will be deemed a public nuisance and health 
hazard, and will be subject to compliance with the Town of Abingdon, Virginia Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 30, § 30-51. 

§ 58-71 Maintenance. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

It shall be the duty of the occupant or owner of every dwelling unit or establishment for which 
Town-issued solid waste containers are provided by this division to maintain such containers in 
good repair at all times and to maintain such containers and the area surrounding them in a clean, 
neat and sanitary condition at all times. A fee will be imposed on the user to replace a Town-
issued solid waste container if it the container is damaged by misuse on the part of the user, or 
lost. 

§ 58-72 Storage. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 



Residential solid waste containers shall be stored upon the residential premises. Commercial 
solid waste containers shall be stored upon private property. 

§ 58-73 Unlawful use. 

[Ord. of 8-6-1993; Ord. of 3-4-2013] 

It shall be unlawful for any person to deposit solid waste in any solid waste container other than 
his own, without the written consent of the owner of such container, or with the intent of 
avoiding payment of the service charge provided in this article for solid waste collection and 
disposal. It shall be unlawful for any person living outside the corporate limits of the Town or 
any business not located in the Town to make use of Town solid waste collection services by 
bringing any solid waste into the Town limits and placing the same in or near any receptacles set 
out for Town collection. 

 



An Ordinance of the Council for the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

to amend the Town Ordinance Chapter 58 Solid Waste Article II Storage and 

Collection Division 1 through Division 3 

WHEREAS, § 15.2-927, et seq., of the Code of Virginia, localities may operate solid waste 

collection services; and   

WHEREAS, the Abingdon Town Council wishes to amend its existing solid waste 

ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the council of the Town of Abingdon that: 

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be decided to be invalid or unconstitutional by a 

court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of 

any other section or provision of this ordinance or the Code of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia; 

and  

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that upon the vote of the Council for the Town of 

Abingdon that: Town Ordinance Chapter 58 Solid Waste Article II Storage and Collection 

Division 1 through Division 3 generally be amended as presented in Exhibit A.  

CERTIFICATE 

Pursuant to Section 2-100 of the Code of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia, I hereby 

certify that I have reviewed the foregoing proposed ordinance to amend, and find it to be in 

correct form, as set forth above, August 7, 2023.        

       

      ______________________________ 

        Cameron Bell, Counsel  

 

This ordinance was adopted on the   day of August, 2023, to take effect on the ____ day 

of ____________, 2023. 

 

            

             Amanda Pillion, Mayor 

 

The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a meeting 

of the Council held on August 7, 2023. I hereby certify that such meeting was a regularly 

scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was 

present. I further certify that the minutes of meeting was a regularly scheduled meeting and that, 



during the consideration of the foregoing ordinance, a quorum was present. I further certify that 

the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and the voting on the 

foregoing ordinance was as follows:  

 

MEMBERS  ATTENDANCE  VOTE 

Amanda Pillion, Mayor   

Dwyane Anderson, Vice 

Mayor 

  

Derek Webb   

Donna Quetsch   

Wayne Austin    

 

WITNESS MY HAND and the seal of the Town of Abingdon as of August 7, 2023. 

 

(SEAL)  

 

             

Kimberly Kingsley, Clerk 

 


	E - 1 2023.08.07 draft agenda
	F - 1 2023.07.10 minutes
	J - 1a  128 Park Street David Dalton Building in FLood Zone SUP
	J - 1a Staff Report Town Council 128 Park Street David Dalton SUP
	J - 1b Dooley House - 2023 Flood Study Revised
	J - 1c  SUP Resolution for 128 Park Street Unsigned
	K - 1 Ordinance amending Veterans Advisory Board
	K - 2  Memo to Town Council 
	K - 2  Revisions to Solid Waste Ordinances_ Abingdon_ underline strikethrough
	K - 2b Solid Waste July 2023

